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LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER: 

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to safety and to compliance with the 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license.  The inspection consisted of selective 
examinations of procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspectors.  The inspection 
findings are as follows: 

 1.  Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified. 

 2.  Previous violation(s) closed. 

 3.  Reported events reviewed 

 

4.  The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being 
cited because they were self-identified, non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the 
remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise discretion, were satisfied. 
Non-Cited Violation(s) was/were discussed involving the following requirement(s) and Corrective Action(s): 

 

5.  During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of 
NRC requirements and are being cited. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to 
posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11. 
(Violations and Corrective Actions) 

 

LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER STATEMENT OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS FOR ITEM 5, ABOVE 
 

 I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the inspector will be taken to correct the violation(s) identified.  This 
statement of corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective 
steps which will be taken, date when full compliance will be achieved).  I understand that no further written response to the NRC will be 
required, unless specifically requested. 

Title Printed Name Signature Date

LICENSEE/CERTIFICATE 
HOLDER REPRESENTATIVE 

   

NRC INSPECTOR Robert Prince /RA/ M. Thomas for 6/29/10 
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6.  INSPECTOR(S): Robert Prince and Gregory Goff (in training) 

7.  INSPECTION PROCEDURES USED: 88030, 88045 and 88050 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

 

Summary of Plant Status 
 
The AREVA Lynchburg facility fabricates fuel assemblies used in commercial nuclear power reactors.  During 
the inspection period, the plant was in normal operation.  This routine, announced inspection included 
evaluation of the radiation protection, environmental monitoring, and emergency preparedness programs.  The 
inspection involved observations of work activities, review of selected records, and interviews with plant 
personnel.  The inspection identified the following aspects of the licensee programs as outlined below: 
 
Radiation Protection (88030) 
 

• The inspectors reviewed radiological survey records for accuracy and completeness.  Inspectors 
verified radiological sign postings accurately reflected plant radiological conditions.  The inspectors 
confirmed current radiological survey maps accurately described current radiological conditions in 
radiological work areas.  Also, inspectors verified that current radiological work permits (RWPs) 
adequately prescribed radiological protective measures and were available to workers.  No issues of 
safety significance were identified.   
 

• Inspectors reviewed bioassay records and supporting documentation.  The inspectors noted that 
bioassay samples were routinely collected and subsequently analyzed by a qualified, off-site analytical 
facility.  Based on a review of the bioassay results, inspectors noted that bioassay results were well 
below licensee’s action levels.   
 

• The licensee utilizes lapel breathing zone air samples to evaluate internal exposures of individuals.  
Based on field observations, inspectors noted that operators were equipped with lapel breathing zone 
samplers in accordance with approved procedures.  General work area airborne concentrations were 
monitored by several stationary air sample stations located within the controlled area.  Based on a 
review of air sample airborne concentration data, no issues of safety significance were identified.   

 
• Inspectors reviewed activities associated with the maintenance and issuance of respiratory protective 

equipment.  Inspectors verified the location and condition of respirators available for use.  Inspectors 
noted that adequate measures have been established to prevent the issuance of respirators to non-
qualified individuals. The inspectors found that the licensee’s respiratory protection training and 
qualification program for personnel adequately addressed regulatory requirements.    
 
 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Continued) 
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• Inspectors observed licensee personnel performing daily operational response checks on portable 
survey meters.  Licensee personnel were knowledgeable of the daily response check requirements and 
associated procedural requirements.  The inspectors verified that portable survey equipment available 
for use was within current calibration.  Calibration records for portable survey meters were accurate 
with no concerns identified.  Instrument response checks and calibration sources were appropriate for 
their intended function.  Daily operational checks of radiological laboratory equipment, utilized for the 
analysis of air samples and for determination of contamination levels,  were performed in accordance 
with approved procedures.   
 

• Inspectors reviewed audits and self-assessments for the radiation protection program.  Audit findings 
were entered into the licensee’s corrective action program in accordance with approved procedures.  
The self-assessments were adequate with a low threshold for identifying issues.  No issues of safety 
significance were identified.   

 
• Inspectors reviewed the latest annual ALARA report.  Based on a review of documentation and 

discussions with licensee personnel, no issues were identified.  Inspectors noted that annual personnel 
exposures were well below regulatory exposure limits.   

 
• The inspectors reviewed the root cause analysis report and the status of associated corrective actions 

for a licensee identified issue involving adequacy of radiological work permits described in condition 
report 2010-1435.  The inspectors noted that the licensee’s corrective actions were appropriate and 
timely.  Corrective actions included a management stand-down to address the importance of 
maintaining a safety conscious work environment, procedure revisions to strengthen human 
performance elements associated with management observation programs, and department-specific 
stand-downs to address the importance of procedural compliance. 
 

• Inspectors noted that two organizational changes pertaining to radiation protection program activities 
had been made since the last inspection.  These changes included a recently appointed Environmental, 
Health, Safety & Licensing (EHS&L) manager and, recently appointed Transportation, Security & 
Environmental Management supervisor.  Based on discussions and a review of qualifications, no issues 
were identified.   

 
Effluent Control and Environmental Protection (88045) 
 

• The inspectors reviewed procedures relating to the conduct and administration of the effluent and 
environmental control programs.  The inspectors interviewed personnel regarding processes utilized by 
the licensee to evaluate, review, track and trend data associated with these programs.  The inspectors 
found that adequate controls were in place to identify adverse trends and that appropriate action levels 
had been established to provide early indication of adverse trends.  The inspectors reviewed and 
discussed with licensee personnel the most recent semi-annual effluent report and the 2009 Annual 
ALARA and Environmental Report.  Effluent releases were noted to be well below regulatory limits.  No 
adverse trends or issues of safety significance were identified.   
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Emergency Preparedness (88050) 
 

• The inspectors reviewed emergency equipment and supply locations maintained by the licensee.  
Equipment and supplies were maintained in accordance with approved procedures and readily 
available for use.  Equipment requiring routine calibration was within current calibration. 
 

• The inspectors reviewed the emergency response team roster to evaluate the availability of sufficient 
numbers of suitably trained and qualified individuals to fulfill key emergency response positions.  The 
inspectors discussed staffing requirements and aspects of the training and qualification program for 
emergency response personnel with responsible individuals.  No concerns were identified. 
 

• No significant changes had been made to emergency response program procedures since the last 
inspection.  Emergency response procedures were found to be current. 
 

 
 
Exit Meeting Summary 
 
The inspection scope and results were summarized on Thursday, June 10, 2010, with Dominique 
Grandemange, and members of his staff.  The inspectors asked the licensee staff whether any materials 
examined during the inspection should be considered proprietary.  No proprietary information was identified. 
 
Key Points of Contact 
 
Name Title 
D. Grandemange Mt. Athos Rd. Site Manager, Operations 
W. Starkey Manager, Environmental, Health, Safety & Licensing 
T. Blanks Supervisor, Transportation, Security & Environmental Management 
D. Lee 
D. Cass 

Radiation Protection 
Radiation Protection 
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